
 
 

Please ask for: 

Linda Coote 
Direct dial: 

(023) 9254 5340 
Fax: 

(023) 9254 5587 
E-mail: 

linda.coote@gosport.gov.uk 
 

10 November 2021 
 

S U M M O N S 
 
MEETING: Standards and Governance Committee 
DATE: 18 November 2021 
TIME: 6.00 pm 
PLACE: Council Chamber 
Democratic Services contact: Linda Coote 

 

 
PAUL GRANT 
BOROUGH SOLICITOR AND MONITORING OFFICER 
 

 
MEMBERS OF THE BOARD 

 

Councillor Blackman (Chairman) 
  

 

Councillor Ms Ballard 
Councillor Beavis 
Councillor Chegwyn 
Councillor Mrs Furlong 
Councillor Herridge 
Councillor Hylands 
 

Councillor Mrs Hook 
Councillor Mrs Huggins 
Councillor Murphy 
Councillor Pepper 
Councillor Scard 
 

 

Public Document Pack



 
FIRE PRECAUTIONS 

 
(To be read by the Chairman if members of the public are present) 

 
In the event of the fire alarm sounding, please leave the room immediately. Proceed 
downstairs by way of the main stairs or as directed by GBC staff, follow any of the emergency 
exit signs. People with disability or mobility issues please identify yourself to GBC staff who 
will assist in your evacuation of the building. 
 

IMPORTANT NOTICE: 
 

 If you are in a wheelchair or have difficulty in walking and require 
access to the Committee Room on the First Floor of the Town Hall 
for this meeting, assistance can be provided by Town Hall staff on 
request. 

 
If you require any of the services detailed above please ring the Direct Line 
for the Democratic Services Officer listed on the Summons (first page). 

 
NOTE: 
 

i. Councillors are requested to note that, if any Councillor who is not a Member of the Board 
wishes to speak at the Board meeting, then the Borough Solicitor is required to receive 
not less than 24 hours prior notice in writing or electronically and such notice shall 
indicate the agenda item or items on which the member wishes to speak.  

 

ii. Please note that mobile phones should be switched off or switched to silent for the duration 
of the meeting. 

 

iii. This meeting may be filmed or otherwise recorded. By attending this meeting, you are 

consenting to any broadcast of your image and being recorded.  

 



Standards and Governance Committee 
18 November 2021 

 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
 

1.   Apologies for non-attendance   

2.   Declarations of interest   

 All members are required to disclose at this point in the meeting or 
as soon as possible thereafter, any disclosable pecuniary interest or 
personal interest in any item(s) being considered at this meeting. 
 

 

3.   Minutes of previous meeting held on 14 October 2021 (Pages 5 - 
6) 

 

4.   Deputations - Standing Order 3.4   

 (NOTE: The Board is required to receive a deputation(s) on a matter 
which is before the meeting of the Board provided that notice of the 
intended deputation and its object shall have been received by the 
Borough Solicitor by 12 noon on Tuesday 16th November 2021) 
 

 

5.   Public Questions - Standing Order 3.5   

 (NOTE: The Board is required to allow a total of 15 minutes for 
questions from members of the public on matters within the terms of 
reference of the Board provided that notice of such question(s) shall 
have been submitted to the Borough Solicitor by 12 noon on 
Tuesday 16th November 2021) 
 

 

6.   Whistleblowing Policy & Statistics (Pages 7 - 8)  

 To update Members in regards to the Whistleblowing Policy and any 
referrals made from October 2020 to October 2021. 
 

 

7.   Audit Progress Report  1st April to 28th October 2021 (Pages 9 - 
20) 

 

  
To update the committee on the progress of the Audit Plan 2021/22, 
agreed (July 2021), to the Members with responsibility for 
governance. 

 
 

 

8.   Review of Code of Conduct for Members (Pages 21 - 34)  



Standards and Governance Committee 
18 November 2021 

 
 

 This report sets out the need for the Council to review its Code of 
Conduct for Members and Arrangements for Dealing with Allegations 
of Breaches of the Code of Conduct for Members (taken together 
and referred to as “the Code”) set out in Part 4 Schedule 17 of the 
Constitution, and considers the proposal of setting up a working 
group of Members and Officers to review the Code and assist the 
Borough Solicitor in proposing amendments to a future Committee. 
 

 

9.   Any Other Items   



Standards and Governance Committee 
14 October 2021 

 

1 

A MEETING OF THE STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
WAS HELD ON 14 OCTOBER 2021 

 
 
  
 
Councillors Blackman, Ms Ballard, Chegwyn, Mrs Furlong, Hylands, Mrs Hook and Scard 
 
 
54. APOLOGIES FOR NON-ATTENDANCE  
 
There were no apologies, but reduced numbers in attendance 
 
55. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were none 
 
56. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING HELD ON 3RD AUGUST 2021  
 
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 3 August 2021 be signed as a true 
and correct record. 
 
57. DEPUTATIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.4  
 
There were none 
 
58. PUBLIC QUESTIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.5  
 
There were none 
 
59. LOCAL GOVERNMENT OMBUDSMAN ANNUAL REVIEW 2021  
 
Consideration was given to a report by the Chief Executive regarding the Annual Review 
Letter 2021 received from the Local Government Ombudsman (LGO). 
 
In answer to a Member’s question the Borough Solicitor and Monitoring Officer agreed to 
provide more details of the complaints received by the LGO in future reports and to improve 
the presentation of the data and annual comparisons. 
 
In answer to a Member’s question the Borough Solicitor and Monitoring Officer agreed to 
work with the Chairman in determining what format annual reporting of complaints against 
Councillors could take and how it could be made public to assist with transparency, but 
protect confidentiality. 
 
Members were advised that the Borough Solicitor and Monitoring Officer would look to 
ensure that the published information regarding Member’s allowances and travel expenses 
was accurate and clearly shown to meet the legal requirements. 
 
 
RESOLVED: That the Committee noted the report. 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



Standards and Governance Committee 
14 October 2021 

 

2 

60. CORPORATE RISK REGISTER  
 
Consideration was given to a report by the Chief Internal Auditor regarding the Corporate 
Risk Register. 
 
 
 
RESOLVED: That the Committee noted the report. 
 
61. AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 1ST APRIL TO 20TH SEPTEMBER 2021  
 
Consideration was given to a report by the Chief Internal Auditor regarding the Audit 
Progress Report 1st April to 20th September 2021. 
 
Members were advised that progress was a little behind where it was hoped to be due to 
the loss of a member of the audit team. This position had now been recruited, and 
amendments have been made to the plan in light of the effect of carrying the vacancy. 
 
Members were advised that good progress had been made in the area of GDPR and had 
moved from limited assurance to reasonable assurance. 
 
In answer to a Member’s question, the Chief Internal Auditor advised that there may be 
further calls on his team to support other departments, and it was the break in work flow 
that caused the problem, not just the number of hours. He advised that he would be 
bringing more information to the next meeting. 
 
RESOLVED: That the Committee noted the report.  
 
62. ANY OTHER ITEMS  
 
There were none. 
 
 

CHAIRMAN 
 

 
Concluded at 6.14 pm 

 
 

Page 6



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Purpose 
 

To update Members in regards to the Whistleblowing Policy and any referrals made from 
October 2020 to October 2021. 

 
 

Recommendations 
 

a. That the Standards & Governance Committee note that no referrals have been made 
under the Whistleblowing Policy between October 2020 and October 2021 

b. The whistleblowing policy has been reviewed and no changes have been made 
 
 

 
1. Background & Purpose 

 

1.1 The Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998 gives employees certain rights in relation to 
whistleblowing.  An employee has a right to make a protected disclosure to prescribed 
persons where the employee reasonably believes: 

 
1.1.1 A criminal offence has, or is going to be committed; 
1.1.2 There is a breach of a legal obligation; 
1.1.3 A miscarriage of justice; 
1.1.4 There is a danger to the health and safety of any individual; 
1.1.5 There will be damage to the environment; or 
1.1.6 There is deliberate concealment of information tending to show any of the 

above five matters. 
 

1.2 The Act provides that employees shall suffer no detriment to their employment as a 
result of blowing the whistle, including disciplinary action. 

 
1.3 The Policy applies to all Council staff, including employees, temporary workers, agency 

staff and any contractor remunerated by the Council. 
 

 
 

2. Report 
 
2.1 No referrals were made under the Whistleblowing policy between October 2020 and 

October 2021 
2.2 A review was undertaken on the existing policy to ensure it still met the requirement 

of the legislation. Following the review, no changes were made to the Policy. 
  

Board/Committee: Standards & Governance Committee 

Date of Meeting: 18th November 2021 

Title: Whistleblowing Policy & Statistics 

Author: Chief Internal Auditor 

Status: FOR NOTING 

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



 
 

3. Conclusion 
 

3.1 That the committee note the statistics in relation to the use of Whistleblowing for the 
period October 2020 to October 2021 and note that the policy has been reviewed 
and no changes were necessary. 

 
 

Financial Services 
comments: 

Nil 

Legal Services comments: Nil 

Crime and Disorder: Nil 

Equality and Diversity: Nil 

Service Improvement Plan 
implications: 

 

Corporate Plan: It supports the Council in pursuit of excellence through delivering 
an effective and high quality governance evaluation and 
monitoring. 

Risk Assessment: Not to take this action would have potential legal, governance, 
and risk management implications for the Council 

Background papers: None 

Appendices/Enclosures: N/A 
 

Report author/ Lead Officer: Paul Somerset - Chief Internal Auditor 

 

Page 8



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Purpose 
 

To update the committee on the progress of the Audit Plan 2021/22, agreed (July 2021), to 
the Members with responsibility for governance. 

 

Recommendations 
 

a. That the Standards and Governance Committee note the progress of the Audit Plan 
2021/22 from 1st April 2021 - 28th October 2021. 
 
 

1. Background & Purpose 
 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide the Standards and Governance Committee with an 
overview of internal audit activity against assurance work completed in accordance with the 
approved internal audit plan. Members of this Committee approved the 2021/22 Annual Audit 
in July 2021 which consisted of 38 audit assignments initially.   

 
 

2. Report 
 
2.1 Appendix A is the Audit Progress Report 1st April - 28th October 2021. 

  
 

3. Conclusion 
 

3.1 That the Committee note the Audit Progress against the 2021/22 Audit Plan. 
 
 

Financial Services 
comments: 

Nil 

Legal Services comments: Nil 

Crime and Disorder: Nil 

Equality and Diversity: Nil 

Service Improvement Plan 
implications: 

The delivery of the annual audit plan is a key function of the 
service. 

Corporate Plan: It supports the Council in pursuit of excellence through delivering 
an effective and high quality governance evaluation and 
monitoring. 

Risk Assessment: The work performed by Internal Audit assists in reducing the 
overall risk exposure in the Council’s operations and provides a 
high degree of assurance to management in placing reliance on 
the adequacy of internal controls within their Services 

Background papers: None 

Appendices/Enclosures: Appendix A – Audit Progress Report 1st April - 28th October 2021 

Board/Committee: Standards and Governance Committee 

Date of Meeting: 18th November 2021 

Title: Audit Progress Report  1st April to 28th October 2021 

Author: Chief Internal Auditor 

Status: FOR NOTING 

Page 9

Agenda Item 7



 

Report author/ Lead Officer: Paul Somerset - Chief Internal Auditor 

 

Page 10



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Internal Audit Progress Report 18th November 2021 

Paul Somerset, Chief Internal Auditor 

 

P
age 11



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t  

 

Page 2 
Gosport Borough Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was internally assessed in May 2020  

1. I n t r o d u c t i o n   

 

Internal Audit is a statutory function for all local authorities.  

The requirement for an Internal Audit function in local government is detailed within the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015 as to: 

 

Undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, control and governance 
processes, taking into account public sector internal auditing standards or guidance 

 
The standards for ‘proper practices’ are laid down in the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards [the Standards – updated 2016]. 

Internal auditing is an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed to add value and improve an organisation’s operations. It helps an 

organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management, control 

and governance processes 

This report includes the status against the 2021/22 internal audit plan. 

 

 
 

 

 

 

P
age 12



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t  

 

Page 3 
Gosport Borough Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was internally assessed in May 2020  

2 .  A u d i t  P l a n  P r o g r e s s  a s  o f  2 8 t h  O c t o b e r  2 0 2 1  

 

There are 35 audits in the revised plan for 2021/22. 

To date, 10 (29%) have been issued, 3 (9%) are in draft report, 5 (14%) are work in progress and 17 (48%) are yet to be initiated.  

 

 

S t a t u s  A u d i t s  

Identified 17 

Fieldwork 5 

Draft Report 3 

Issued 10 
 

 
 
 

48% 

14% 

9% 

29% 

Audit Plan Progress as of 28th 
October 2021 

Identified

Fieldwork

Draft

Issued

P
age 13



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t  

 

Page 4 
Gosport Borough Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was internally assessed in May 2020  

3 .  O n g o i n g  I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  I n v o l v e m e n t /  C o v i d  u p d a t e   
 
COVID-19 
Gosport Borough Council moved to Business Critical services on the 18th March 2020, due to the Covid pandemic. Internal Audit staff were redeployed to 
aid the council in processing Business Grants and assisting in the Covid welfare work. Internal Audit began to recommence activities in early July 2020 
however staff were still undertaking Grant work and assisting in business recovery until July 2021 
The Senior Auditor had been redeployed to assist with the administration of the grants and while this redeployed has ended, time is spent advising 
colleagues in this area.  
It has been calculated that from April 2021 to October 2021, the Senior Auditor has spent approximately 40 days on Covid Grant related work. For context, 
for audit resource calculation purposes, the Senior Auditor is assigned approximately 140 days per annum for audit work 
 
 
 
 
Internal Audit has provided advice, ongoing reviews and involvement work in the following areas. (For reference, advice is only recorded when the time 
taken to provide the advice exceeds one hour): 
 

 Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act (RIPA) - authorisations (if applicable) and policy review 

 Anti-Money Laundering - policy review 

 National Fraud Initiative (NFI) to facilitate national data matching carried out by the Cabinet Office 

 National Anti-Fraud Network (NAFN) bulletins and intelligence follow up 

 Standards & Governance Committee - reporting and attendance  

 Audit Planning and Consultation 

 Risk Management & Annual Governance Statement  
 

 
 

4 .  A u d i t  P l a n  S t a t u s / C h a n g e s  
 

No changes have been made to the Audit Plan since the last meeting (October 2021) 

P
age 14



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t  

 

Page 5 
Gosport Borough Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was internally assessed in May 2020  

5 .  A r e a s  o f  C o n c e r n   
 

No new areas of concern 

 

6. A s s u r a n c e  L e v e l s  
 

Internal Audit reviews culminate in an opinion on the assurance that can be placed on the effectiveness of the framework of risk management, control and 

governance designed to support the achievement of management objectives for the area under review. 

 

Audits rated No Assurance are specifically highlighted to the Governance and Audits and Standards Committee 
along with any Director’s comments. The Committee is able to request any director attends a meeting to 

A s s u r a n c e  L e v e l  D e s c r i p t i o n  /  E x a m p l e s  

Assurance 
No issues or minor improvements noted within the audit but based on the testing conducted, assurance can be placed 
that the activity is of low risk to the Authority 

Reasonable Assurance Control weaknesses or risks were identified but overall the activities do not pose significant risks to the Authority 

Limited Assurance Control weaknesses or risks were identified which pose a more significant risk to the Authority 

No Assurance 
Major individual issues identified or collectively a number of issues raised which could significantly impact the overall 
objectives of the activity that was subject to the Audit 

NAT No areas tested 

P
age 15



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t  

 

Page 6 
Gosport Borough Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was internally assessed in May 2020  

discuss the issues. 

 

7 .  E x c e p t i o n  R i s k  R a n k i n g  
 

The following table outline the exceptions raised in audit reports, reported in priority order and are broadly equivalent to those previously used. 

 

 

Any critical exceptions found the will be reported in their entirety to the Governance and Audits and Standards Committee along 
with Director’s comments 

P r i o r i t y  L e v e l  D e s c r i p t i o n  

Low Risk 
(Improvement) 

Very low risk exceptions or recommendations that are classed as improvements that are intended to help the service fine tune its control 
framework or improve service effectiveness and efficiency.  An example of an improvement recommendation would be making changes to a filing 
system to improve the quality of the management trail.  

Medium Risk These are control weaknesses that may expose the system function or process to a key risk but the likelihood of the risk occurring is low.  

High Risk 

Action needs to be taken to address significant control weaknesses but over a reasonable timeframe rather than immediately.  These issues are 
not ‘show stopping’ but are still important to ensure that controls can be relied upon for the effective performance of the service or function.  If 
not addressed, they can, over time, become critical.  An example of an important exception would be the introduction of controls to detect and 
prevent fraud.  

Critical Risk 
Control weakness that could have a significant impact upon not only the system function or process objectives but also the achievement of the 
Council’s objectives in relation to: The efficient and effective use of resources, The safeguarding of assets, The preparation of reliable financial and 
operational information, Compliance with laws and regulations and corrective action needs to be taken immediately. 

P
age 16



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t  

 

Page 7 
Gosport Borough Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was internally assessed in May 2020  

 

8 .   2 0 2 0 / 2 1  A u d i t s  c o m p l e t e d  t o  d a t e  ( 2 8 t h  O c t o b e r  2 0 2 1 )  
IT Access Controls  - IT  

Exceptions Raised 

Critical High Medium Low 

0 1 1 2 
 

Overall Assurance Level 

 Reasonable Assurance  

 
Agreed actions are scheduled to be 

implemented by January 2022 

Assurance Level by Scope Area 

Achievement of Strategic Objectives  NAT  

Compliance with Policies, Laws & Regulations NAT 

Safeguarding of Assets NAT 

Effectiveness and Efficiency of Operations Reasonable Assurance 

Reliability and Integrity of Data NAT 
 

The high risk exception relates to the use of admin accounts and the medium risk relates to process of deactivating leaver accounts 

 

Enforcement - Streetscene 

Exceptions Raised 

Critical High Medium Low 

0 1 1 1 
 

Overall Assurance Level 

 Reasonable Assurance    

 
Agreed actions are scheduled to be 

implemented by April 2022 

Assurance Level by Scope Area 

Achievement of Strategic Objectives  Assurance  

Compliance with Policies, Laws & Regulations Reasonable Assurance 

Safeguarding of Assets Reasonable Assurance 

Effectiveness and Efficiency of Operations Assurance 

Reliability and Integrity of Data Assurance 
 

The high risk exception relates to a non defined inspection process and the medium risk relates to a lack of formal enforcement policy. 

 

P
age 17



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t  

 

Page 8 
Gosport Borough Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was internally assessed in May 2020  

9 .  F o l l o w - u p  A c t i o n  C a t e g o r i s a t i o n  

 
The following table outlines the follow up categories used to describe the outcome of follow up testing completed. 
 

 

 
 

 

F o l l o w  U p  C a t e g o r i e s  D e s c r i p t i o n  

Open No action has been taken on agreed action.  

Pending Actions cannot be taken at the current time but steps have been taken to prepare.  

In Progress Progress has been made on the agreed action however they have not been completed. 

Implemented but not Effective Agreed action implemented but not effective in mitigating the risk. 

Closed: Verified Agreed action implemented and risk mitigated, verified by follow up testing. 

Closed: Not Verified Client has stated action has been completed but unable to verify via testing. 

Closed: Management Accepts 
Risk 

Management has accepted the risk highlighted from the exception. 

Closed: No Longer Applicable Risk exposure no longer applicable.  

P
age 18



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t  

 

Page 9 
Gosport Borough Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was internally assessed in May 2020  

 

1 0 .  A u d i t s  i n  D r a f t  t o  d a t e  ( 2 8 t h  O c t o b e r  2 0 2 1 )  

 
Audit Directorate  Draft Since Projected Issue Date Revised Comments 

Partnerships Executive 20/9/21 November 2021   

Workforce 
Planning Follow 
up 

HR 26/10/21 November 2021 
  

Governance 
Follow up 

Executive 26/10/21 November 2021 
  

 
 

1 1 .  A u d i t s  i n  P r o g r e s s  t o  D a t e  ( 2 8 t h  O c t o b e r  2 0 2 1 )  

Audit 
Directorate  Delayed 

Projected Issued 
Date 

Revised Issued 
Date Comments 

Homelessness Housing N/A September 2021 November 2021  

Payroll HR N/A November 2021   

Microsoft Teams IT N/A November 2021   

Social Media Follow up Executive N/A October 2021   

Absence Management HR  N/A November 2021   

P
age 19



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t  

 

Page 10 
Gosport Borough Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was internally assessed in May 2020  

 

P
age 20



Agenda item  

Board/Committee: STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

Date of meeting: 18 NOVEMBER 2021 

Title: REVIEW OF CODE OF CONDUCT FOR MEMBERS AND 
ARRANGEMENTS FOR DEALING WITH ALLEGATIONS OF 
BREACHES OF THE CODE OF CONDUCT FOR MEMBERS 

Author: BOROUGH SOLICITOR & MONITORING OFFICER 

Status: FOR DECISION 

 

Purpose 

This report sets out the need for the Council to review its Code of Conduct for 
Members and Arrangements for Dealing with Allegations of Breaches of the Code of 
Conduct for Members (taken together and referred to as “the Code”) set out in Part 4 
Schedule 17 of the Constitution, and considers the proposal of setting up a working 
group of Members and Officers to review the Code and assist the Borough Solicitor 
in proposing amendments to a future Committee. 

Recommendation 

That the Committee agrees to establish a working group of five members 
(made up of the Chairman plus four other members of the Committee) to work 
with Officers to review the Code of Conduct for Members and Arrangements 
for Dealing with Allegations of Breaches of the Code of Conduct for Members 
and to consider proposals for amendment so that the Borough Solicitor & 
Monitoring Officer can report back to the Committee at a subsequent meeting 
in early 2022 with proposals for amendment for onward submission to the 
Policy & Organisation Board and Full Council as a change of the Constitution. 

 

1.0 Background 
 

1.1 On 19 November 2020 the Committee considered a report by the Borough 
Solicitor & Monitoring Officer in response to the Committee on Standards 
in Public Life Report, chaired by Lord Evans of Weardale (the ‘Weardale 
Report’) dated January 2019. 
 

1.2 One of the recommendations of that previous Committee report was that 
the Code should be subject to an annual review. The report stated that, 
“We will ensure that the Council programme of meetings is updated to 
include an annual review of the Code of Conduct.” 
  

1.3 The Weardale Report had also made a number of other best practice 
recommendations regarding a Council’s Code of Conduct, and it would be 
appropriate to review and consider these as part of this first annual review. 
The best practice recommendations which were aimed at a Council’s Code 
of Conduct are set out in this report along with proposals for how the 
Council might address them with changes to the Code. 

  

Page 21

Agenda Item 8



2.0 Report 
 

2.1 The Committee previously considered the Council’s response to the 
Weardale Report in November of last year. As stated above, the Weardale 
Report set out a number of best practice recommendations, and those 
which relate to a Council’s Code of Conduct are referred to in the following 
paragraphs together with some suggestions for how these can be 
addressed. 
 

2.1 Best practice recommendation 1: 
“Local authorities should include prohibitions on bullying and harassment in 
codes of conduct. These should include a definition of bullying and 
harassment, supplemented with a list of examples of the sort of behaviour 
covered by such a definition.” 
 
The Code contains a prohibition on bullying. It does not specifically cite 
‘harrassment’, which could be inferred by other prohibitions in the Code; 
but this should be specifically added. In particular, the Code requires 
definitions of bullying and harassment and examples to comply with the 
recommendation provided by the Weardale Report; so these will need to 
be considered. 
 

2.2 Best Practice Recommendation 2: 
“Councils should include provisions in their code of conduct requiring 
councillors to comply with any formal standards investigation, and 
prohibiting trivial or malicious allegations by councillors.”  
 
The Code currently does not have these specific provisions, although it 
does allow for taking into consideration whether a complaint is, “vexatious, 
politically motivated, tit-for-tat or made by a persistent complainant.” Such 
additional wording can be added to the procedure if Members are in 
agreement. In particular it would be of benefit to the Council to make it 
explicitly clear that all Members are required to comply with a formal 
standards investigation in order to provide public confidence in the system 
that the Council has in place. 
 

2.3 Best practice recommendation 3: 
“Principal authorities should review their code of conduct each year and 
regularly seek, where possible, the views of the public, community 
organisations and neighbouring authorities.” 
 
Further to this recommendation, Officers have ensured that the Council 
plans for an annual review of the Code by the Standards and Governance 
Committee. On this occasion the review is likely to be more detailed as it is 
a first review of the Code since it was introduced by the Council in March 
2019. The views of Members of the Standards & Governance Committee 
are sought regarding the proposal for wider consultation on the Code, and 
further it is proposed that all Group Leaders are approached on the 
subject. 
 

Page 22



2.4 
 

Best practice recommendation 6:  
“Councils should publish a clear and straightforward public interest test 
against which allegations are filtered.” 
 
Having considered the supporting text within the Weardale Report it was 
concluded last year that the Council should consider an amendment to its 
assessment criteria to include a clearer public interest test; albeit that 
certain elements of what may be included are already contained in the 
Constitution such as considerations of whether the alleged conduct took 
place within the last six months, whether it involves behaviour under the 
Code, and whether the conduct is something which it is possible and 
proportionate to investigate. 
 
The Weardale Report contains the following example which the Council 
could consider as a starting point: 
 
“1. ‘CAN’ we investigate your complaint? 

 Is the person you are complaining about a councillor? 

 Did the conduct occur within the last six months? 

 Is the conduct something that is covered by the code? 
 
2. ‘SHOULD’ we investigate your complaint? 

 Is there evidence which supports the complaint? 

 Is the conduct something which it is possible to investigate? 

 Would an investigation be proportionate and in the public 
interest?” 

 
It is proposed that a clearer ‘pre-filter’ stage such as that set out above 
would be helpful and should be taken forwards by the Working Group. 
 

2.5 Best practice recommendation 9:  
“Where a local authority makes a decision on an allegation of misconduct 
following a formal investigation, a decision notice should be published as 
soon as possible on its website, including a brief statement of facts, the 
provisions of the code engaged by the allegations, the view of the 
Independent Person, the reasoning of the decision-maker, and any 
sanction applied.” 
 
The rationale for this recommendation is that this would comply with the 
Nolan principal of ‘openness’. The Weardale Report states that decisions 
on formal investigations should be published. The views of the Working 
Group are sought regarding the proposal for the publication of decision 
notices on the Council’s website, and further it is proposed that all Group 
Leaders are approached on the subject to determine how the Council 
wishes to take this forwards. 
 

2.6 Best practice recommendation 10:  
“A local authority should have straightforward and accessible guidance on 
its website on how to make a complaint under the code of conduct, the 
process for handling complaints, and estimated timescales for 

Page 23



investigations and outcomes.” 
 
The Council’s Code is online and within the Constitution, however on 
reflection it is proposed that we should consider how the Council might 
streamline these and make them easier to follow. For example, as already 
covered at paragraph 2.4, a more straightforward and clear public interest 
test could be an opening consideration which would set out the parameters 
of the process in a clear way. It might also be that a flow diagram to set out 
the process will make this easier to understand and this should be 
considered. 
 

2.7 Best practice recommendation 13:  
“A local authority should have procedures in place to address any conflicts 
of interest when undertaking a standards investigation. Possible steps 
should include asking the Monitoring Officer from a different authority to 
undertake the investigation.” 
 
As members of the legal profession the Borough Solicitor & Monitoring 
Officer, and the Senior Solicitor & Deputy Monitoring Officer consider 
conflicts of interest at the outset of any issue as a matter of routine but will 
set these out in the Code. In the report of last year it was proposed that 
this could appear in a procedure note as requested by the Weardale 
Report, however it may be possible to incorporate relevant principles within 
the Code itself. To be clear, for matters which require an investigation the 
Borough Solicitor always considers whether an independent external 
investigator would be appropriate. 
 

2.8 It is proposed that a Working Group made up of Members and relevant 
Officers considers in further detail how the best practice recommendations 
can be incorporated into the Code. Whilst the Constitution does not provide 
for the Standards and Governance Committee to establish a formal Task 
and Finish Group, there would appear to be no reason why it could not 
establish a working group to assist the Borough Solicitor with proposals 
that can be brought back to the Committee for endorsement and onward 
transmission to the Policy & Organisation Board and Full Council as 
Constitutional amendments. As part of this work it is possible that the 
Borough Solicitor may submit rewritten sections of the Code to ensure that 
these are clearer and easier to understand. 
 

2.9 It is further proposed that a working group is established comprising the 
Chairman together with four additional Members as nominated by the 
Committee and relevant Officers including the Borough Solicitor and Senior 
Democratic Services Officer. The working group will need to meet by the 
end of 2021 to consider the proposals set out in this report in further detail 
alongside relevant sections of the Weardale Report. Group Leaders’ views 
will be sought regarding some of the proposals and the Borough Solicitor 
will also seek the views of Peter Large and Chris Willis, the Council’s 
Independent Persons, who assist with the consideration of complaints 
alleging a breach of the Code. 
 

Page 24



2.10 The Working Group may need to meet more than once in order to provide 
due consideration to proposals which are made to improve the Code. 
 

3.0 Risk Assessment 
 

3.1 By carrying out a review of the Code the Council complies with the 
assurances provided to the Committee on Standards in Public Life. Even 
more importantly, the Council complies with its general requirement to 
pursue continuous improvement and it is a hallmark of good governance to 
do so. 
 

4.0 Conclusion 
 

 This report sets out the requirement for an annual review of the Code and 
how this can be addressed by the Borough Solicitor supported by the 
Committee by establishing a working group of Members drawn from the 
Committee and Officers. 
 

 

Financial Services comments: None 

Legal Services comments: Contained within the report. 

Equality and Diversity: See IIA attached 

Climate Change implications: None – see IIA attached 

Crime and Disorder: None 

Service Improvement Plan 
implications: 

N/A 

Corporate Plan: Empower our residents – good citizenship 
Deliver effective services - continually review 
and improve our services 

Risk Assessment: See section 3. 

Background Papers: Standards and Governance Committee report 
19 November 2020. 
Committee on Standards in Public Life, Lord 
Weardale and others xxx January 2019 

Appendices: IIA attached 

Report Author/Lead Officer: Paul Grant, Borough Solicitor & Monitoring 
Officer 

 

 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



Integrated Impact Assessment for E&D and CC-CPCS, MB  26-05-21 

1 
 

Gosport Borough Council  

Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) 

Completion Instructions for IIA Leads:  

Use this IIA during development to initially assess the likely impact, on both customers and staff, of a proposed new policy, 

strategy, function or service or a proposed change to an existing one. This IIA aims to provide an early warning of any potential 

issues that could adversely impact our customers or staff or result in costly errors in terms of financial or reputational management. 

Evaluating the proposed changes against our key considerations regarding equality & diversity and climate change allows us to 

modify or mitigate any adverse impacts before implementation. It also demonstrates transparency in the Council’s decision making. 

It is a working document with named Subject Expert Officers (SEOs) who can support you - as the IIA Lead, through this process. 

Please do ask the SEOs for advice about potential impacts. 

Impacts in the template are marked: +ve (positive) -ve (negative) or neutral. Once completed the IIA must be signed off by your 

Head of Service and a summary copy attached to the Board or Committee report. Officers have a Duty to ensure that 

Councillors/decision makers understand the impact of decisions before those decisions are made. 

 

Policy/Strategy/Function/ Project  New Existing  IIA Lead Contact Details Date 

Annual Review of Code of Conduct for 
Members 

  Paul Grant paul.grant@gosport.gov.uk 5 
November 
2021 
 
 

 

What is the aim of this policy/strategy/function/project? What will it change ? 

 
The Council has committed to an annual review of the Code of Conduct for Councillors in its response to the Committee on 

P
age 27



Integrated Impact Assessment for E&D and CC-CPCS, MB  26-05-21 

2 
 

Standards in Public Life, Chaired by Lord Evans of Weardale, and recognised in that response that there may be elements of the 
best practice recommendations set out in the Weardale report that could be incorporate – and improve – the existing code. It is also 
a timely review as the current code was introduced in May 2019. 
 
It is proposed that a working group convened of members from the Committee is established to consider the Weardale report best 
practice recommendations further and to look at how supporting the Borough Solicitor in proposing amendments for consideration 
by the Policy and Organisation Board and Full Council. 
 

Has any consultation been undertaken on this proposed change?                                   yes            no 

If yes, summarise the methods used and results of the consultation:  
 
Consultation will be considered as part of the working group outcomes depending on the nature of what is proposed for changes to 
the Code. 
 

 

A. EQUALITY & DIVERSITY 

The Public Sector Equality Duty is part of the Equality Act 2010. The Duty requires the Council to have due regard to the following 
three aims: 
• eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation; 
• advance equal opportunities between people from different groups 
• foster good relations between people from different groups.   

Having due regard means considering how this policy, strategy, project or function has or will advance equal opportunities for each 
of the protected groups below. 

Please note: If this proposal means a change in the availability, degree of provision or access to a service, benefit or 
facility for any group of people, then this Equality &Diversity impact assessment must be completed to assess if this 
proposal could be deemed unlawfully discriminatory.  

P
age 28



Integrated Impact Assessment for E&D and CC-CPCS, MB  26-05-21 

3 
 

SEO for support to complete this section- Mandy Baggaley, CPCS, x5695 mandy.baggaley@gosport.go.uk 

Protected Characteristic + ive - ive Neutral Explanation of Impact 

Age   X  

Disability X   
We will consider how the procedure of making complaints 
will be made more accessible by enabling access through a 
variety of means rather than just online.  

Gender reassignment   X 

The Code of Conduct and procedure of making a complaint 
will be reviewed to ensure compliance with the Council’s 
Accessible Communication Guidance which includes 
consideration of requests for information additional formats 
and languages . 

Marriage and Civil Partnership   X 
Pregnancy    X 
Race (ethnicity, nationality, colour)   X 
Religion or Belief (and lack of belief)   X 
Sex   X 
Sexual Orientation   X 

The Armed Forces Bill places a new duty on public bodies to have due regard to ensure those who serve in the Armed Forces, whether 
Regular or Reserve, those who have served in the past, and their families, should face no disadvantage compared to other citizens in the 
provision of public and commercial services. Special consideration is appropriate in some cases, especially for those who have given most 
such as the injured and the bereaved. Please refer to these resources for more information about the needs and characteristics of the armed 
forces community and our commitment to the Covenant.  GBC Covenant Agreement 2020 Local AFC Profile, needs assessment, resources   

Section of the Armed Forces 
Community 

+ ive - ive Neutral Explanation of Impact 

All   X As above  

     
     

Are there any other groups which could be impacted (e.g. socially or financially excluded) by this item? If yes, identify below: 

     

     

     

P
age 29

mailto:mandy.baggaley@gosport.go.uk
file://///knuckles/department/strat_policy/Equalities%20-MB/Equality%20Impact%20Assessments/Integrated%20EIA%202021%20w%20CC/GBC%20Covenant%20Agreement%202020
https://www.gosport.gov.uk/gosportarmedforcescommunity


Integrated Impact Assessment for E&D and CC-CPCS, MB  26-05-21 

4 
 

What actions will be taken to address/ mitigate potential negative impacts identified: 

Action By whom By when 

Ensure reviewed Code and related 
procedures and any amendments to them 
are accessible in accordance with the 
Councils Accessible Communications 
Guidance 

Borough Solicitor 
Following review of Code and 
presentation to Policy & Organisation 
Board  

   

    

B. CLIMATE CHANGE & ENVIRONMENT 

Consider how this change will have an impact with regard to 

 Greenhouse gas emissions 

 Ability to adapt to the impacts of climate change 

 Waste Management 

 Air Quality 

 Natural Environment 

SEOs for support to complete this section- Tim Pratt, CPCS, x5573    tim.pratt@gosport.gov.uk 

Greenhouse Gas 
Emissions 

Things to consider + ive - ive Neutral Explanation of Impact 

Emissions from buildings 
Gas or electricity use and provision of 
renewable electricity, by GBC or others 

   N/A 

Emissions from transport 
Amount of travel (including goods 
transportation), travel modes and fuels 
used, by GBC or others 

   N/A 

P
age 30

mailto:tim.pratt@gosport.gov.uk


Integrated Impact Assessment for E&D and CC-CPCS, MB  26-05-21 

5 
 

Emissions from agriculture 
and land use 

Creation or removal of carbon sinks in 
Gosport, and changes to food consumption 

   N/A 

Embedded emissions 
Emissions from manufacturing goods and 
materials used by GBC or others 

   N/A 

Climate Change 
Adaptation 

Things to consider + ive - ive Neutral Explanation of Impact 

Vulnerability to storms 
Flood prevention and extent to which 
buildings, habitats and species would be 
affected by flooding and high winds 

   N/A 

Vulnerability to heat waves 

Provision of shading, ventilation and 
insulation in buildings, and extent to which 
habitats and species would be affected by 
heat 

   N/A 

Vulnerability to drought 

Water use in buildings, agriculture, and 
industrial processes, and extent to which 
habitats and species would be affected by 
drought 

   N/A 

Vulnerability to food 
insecurity 

Opportunity for local food production    N/A 

Waste Management Things to consider + ive - ive Neutral Explanation of Impact 

Amount of waste 
generated 

Levels of consumption by GBC, households 
and businesses, and extent to which 
materials used are reusable 

   N/A 

Proportion of waste 
recycled 

Recyclability of materials used by GBC, 
households and businesses, and provision 
of recycling services 

   N/A 

P
age 31



Integrated Impact Assessment for E&D and CC-CPCS, MB  26-05-21 

6 
 

Air Quality Things to consider + ive - ive Neutral Explanation of Impact 

Emissions of key pollutants 
from transport 

Amount of travel (including goods 
transportation), travel modes and fuels 
used, by GBC and others; impacts on 
congestion and amount of idling of more 
vehicles 

   N/A 

Emissions of key pollutants 
from industrial processes 

Emissions from chemical processes    N/A 

Emissions of key pollutants 
from other sources 

Domestic and other fires    N/A 

Impact of key pollutants 
Rate at which pollutants are absorbed or 
dispersed 

   N/A 

Natural Environment Things to consider + ive - ive Neutral Explanation of Impact 
Sustainability of public 
spaces 

Amount of vegetation and maintenance    N/A 

Biodiversity and quality of 
habitats 

General impacts on habitats and direct 
impacts on species of concern 

   N/A 

What actions will be taken to address/ mitigate potential negative impacts identified: 

Action By whom By when 

   

   

    

P
age 32



Integrated Impact Assessment for E&D and CC-CPCS, MB  26-05-21 

7 
 

C. IIA SUMMARY 

Have any positive or negative impacts been identified in 
sections A and B? 

 

Subject + ive - ive Explanation 

A. Equality & Diversity   We will consider how access to the complaints procedure can be improved. 

 

B. Climate Change & Environment   N/A 

Can any negative impacts be mitigated? 
 

Subject Yes No N/A Explanation 

A. Equality & Diversity    N/A 

B. Climate Change & Environment    N/A 

Is further assessment in either subject area necessary to conclude this assessment? 

Subject Yes No If yes, timetable for completion 

A. Equality & Diversity    

B. Climate Change &Environment     

P
age 33



Integrated Impact Assessment for E&D and CC-CPCS, MB  26-05-21 

8 
 

D. IIA CONCLUSION 

     This IIA is complete. No further assessment is required if identified actions are undertaken. This summary can be 

included with Board or Committee reports. 

     This IIA identified further assessment should be undertaken in the identified areas before implementation of this 

proposed change. 

Signed by Head of Service: 

Date: 8 November 2021 

 

P
age 34


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of previous meeting held on 14 October 2021
	Minutes

	6 Whistleblowing Policy & Statistics
	7 Audit Progress Report  1st April to 28th October 2021
	Appendix A Internal Audit Progress Report Nov 21

	8 Review of Code of Conduct for Members
	8.GBC IIA - Code of Conduct for Members 05112021w MB comments Final


